MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, MONDAY, APRIL 4TH, 1927 AT 8:00 P.M.

Present: His Worship Mayor Morden

Alderman Anderson
Alderman Bridgman
Alderman Cartwright
Alderman Irwin
Alderman Townsley
Alderman White

The Minutes of Regular meeting of Council, held March 21st, 1927, copies of which had previously been supplied each member of Council were taken as read and on motion of Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson, adopted.

The Minutes of Special meeting of Council, held March 28th, 1927, copies of which had previously been supplied each member of the Council were taken as read and on motion of Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson, adopted.

Correspondence was received, read and dealt with as follows:

Invitation was received from the Trustees of the Vancouver School Board, requesting the presence of the Mayor and Council at the opening ceremony of the First unit of the Franklin School at 8 p.m. on Friday, April 8th, 1927.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above invitation be accepted and copy forwarded to each member of Council to forward his acceptance r regrets to the Secretary of the Vancouver School Board.

From the Vancouver Oil company, reminding the Council of their previous application for the submission of a Bylaw for fixed assessment.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above be referred to the Clerk for report at next meeting of Council.

From James Rodger and 4 others, drawing attention to the condition of the lane on Lot 10/47/548.

Referred to the Board of Works for report.

From J.A. McCance, 429 – 27th Street West, requesting an entrance t garage. Referred to the Board of Works and Engineer for report.

From the North Vancouver Hospital, thanking the Council for grant for the year 1927.

Filed.

From Jack Loutet with reference to folders published in 1926 being an explanation of the method in which folders were issued. The Committee requested designs for folders and the one submitted by Rose, Cowan & Latta was approved by the Council and their price approved. The map was awarded to lowest tenderer, by the Council.

Filed.

From E.M.A. Radcliffe, 24th Street East, applying for sidewalk. Referred to the Board of Works and Engineer for report.

From R.F. Macnaghten, advising that the owners of Lot 6, Block 38, corner 15th and Lonsdale are not willing to donate the westerly 10 feet for lane purposes. Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the petitioners be so advised.

From E.D. Judson Ltd., with respect to the channel at the end of Bewicke Avenue, requesting that this be kept clear of booms flogs.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the above communication be referred to the Engineer to request parties to keep the channel clear at the foot of Bewicke Avenue.

From Lonsdale Motors Ltd., again requesting that the Hydrant at 15th and Lonsdale be moved in order to give access to garage.

The Engineer reported, recommending that the hydrant be moved 4 feet to the north, estimated cost \$40.00 and requesting to know who should pay cost.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the above request be granted subject to the approval of the Engineer, applicant to pay the cost of such removal.

Alderman Townsley and Alderman Anderson voting against.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that in future the Building Inspector submit similar applications for permits to eh Engineer, before granting permit.

From Annette Clare, 545 Keith Road East, again applying for a sidewalk on the south side of Keith Road in the 500 Block.

Referred to the Board of Works and Engineer for report.

From Alex Philip, applying on behalf of Mr. John Grant to purchase all the cordwood on D.L. 856 and 857 at the usual stumpage rates.

Referred to the Engineer for report and recommendation.

From the Publicity Bureau, Vancouver, acknowledging communication from the Council regretting not being able to include in the estimates for 1927, a grant to the Vancouver Publicity Bureau.

Filed.

From the City Engineer re ornamental street lighting. The estimated cost of standards to be 105 feet apart, 600 candle power, spread over a period of 10 years would be \$2.90 per foot, estimated annual cost, spread over 10 years 40 cents per foot frontage.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the above report be received and referred to the City Special Committee on street lighting to take up with the Owners Committee.

Copy of the Minutes of First Narrows Bridge Committee meeting of March 30th was ordered filed for reference.

From the Dominion Bridge Company, suggesting that Canadian materials and Canadian workmen be used and employed on the First Narrows Bridge.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the above matter be referred to the Special Bridge Committee, with a recommendation that as far as possible Canadian material and Canadian workmen be used and employed.

From Mrs. Maud Dryer, requesting the Council to pass a Bylaw prohibiting people from keeping bees within a radius of at least 100 feet from other people's property.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Vancouver Publicity Bureau, requesting a list of auto camps with the names and addresses of the Managers.

Referred to the Parks Committee.

From the Town Planning Commission, enclosing copy of draft Interim Zoning Bylaw.

Referred to Motions.

From the Town Planning Commission, dated March 22nd, recommending that any applications for permit to build a second house on Lot 17, Block 108, D.L. 274 be held over for two months, pending the passing of Zoning Bylaw, also that any applications for construction of a garage with room overhead, adjoining Mr. Biddiss, be dealt with in the same way.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the above recommendations be adopted.

From the Town Planning Commission, recommending that the application of J. Murphy, 209 Keith Road East, to construct a second house on the one lot, be held over for a period of two months, pending the passing of the Interim Zoning Bylaw.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the above recommendation be adopted.

From the District Forester, calling a meeting of the North Shore Watershed Forest Protection Committee for April 4th.

Alderman Townsley reported that he had overlooked the meeting and therefore had not attended.

From the City Solicitor, enclosing draft agreement between the City and District with respect to grant to the Hospital for the year 1927, same grant and same terms as 1926.

Referred to Bylaw stage.

From the City Clerk reporting that Good Friday falls on April 15th, Easter Monday on April 18th, next regular Council meeting will therefore be held on Tuesday, April 19th and requesting instructions as to closing the Hall on Saturday forenoon, April 16th.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the same procedure be adopted as last year, viz, that the offices in the City Hall be closed from Thursday evening April 14th to Tuesday morning April 19th.

From Wm. Bow, with respect to proposed garage on Lots 99 and 100, Block 235, Tempe Crescent.

Referred to the Board of Works and Engineer for inspection and report.

From C. Gross, complaining of the sawdust nuisance and wishing to know what action is being taken.

The Clerk reported that he had requested information as to definite date when sawdust nuisance will be abated, but no reply ahs been received.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the matter of abating nuisance be referred to the City Solicitor to carry out the instructions of Council.

From the Building Inspector, reporting on the condition of row of cabins $174 - 2^{nd}$ Street East, recommending that the tenants be given notice to vacate and the buildings condemned and destroyed.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the above report and recommendation of the Building Inspector be received and adopted, the premises being City property.

From the Building Inspector, reporting that in March 1927 - 22 building permits were issued, value \$28,466.00 of which 9 were dwellings valued at \$24,250; March 1926 - 32 permits were issued, \$46,860.00; for the 3 months period in 1927 - 58 permits were issued, value \$91,544.00; for 3 months 1926 – 75 permits were issued, valued \$94,745.00.

Filed for reference.

From the Union of Canadian Municipalities, advising that it is expected the next Convention of Union of Canadian Municipalities will be held at Ottawa on June 7, 8 and 9 and requesting that membership fee for the current year be forwarded.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Treasurer be authorized to forward cheque in amount of \$15.00, membership fee Union Canadian Municipalities.

From the City Engineer, being report under Local improvement for construction of sanitary sewer on Chesterfield from 19th to 22nd. Estimated cost \$4,751.00, City's portion \$1,049.00, property owner's portion \$3,702.00, 20 annual instalments, special annual rate per foot 17 cents.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above report be received and adopted and the necessary procedure carried out.

From City Engineer being local improvement report on cost of sanitary sewer on 11th Street, from Lonsdale to Queensbury, total estimated cost \$21,070.00. City's portion \$4,257.85, owners' portion \$16,812.15, 20 annual instalments, special rate per foot frontage – 25 cents.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above report be received, adopted and the necessary procedure carried out.

From the City Engineer being report on cost of sanitary sewer on 8th and 10th Streets from Lonsdale to Ridgeway, estimated cost \$13,425.00, City's portion \$4,555.00, owners' portion \$8,870.00, 20 annual instalments, special annual rate per foot frontage 23 cents.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above report be received, adopted and the necessary procedure carried out.

From the Engineer being report on cost of St. David's Avenue sanitary sewer system, according to plan dated February 2nd, total cost \$59,550.00, City's portion \$19,700.20, owners' portion \$39,849.80, 20 instalments, special annual rate per 23 cents per foot frontage.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the above report be received, adopted and the necessary procedure carried out.

From the Federated Seafarers Union of Canada, requesting an increase in wages of \$10.00 per month for deckhands and firemen on the ferries.

Mr. Aspinall, Solicitor for the Union, being present, addressed the Council quoting wage schedule at San Francisco.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that Mr. Aspinall be requested to furnish the Ferry Committee with information as to

schedule in other places and that the application be referred to the Ferry Committee and that the Committee obtain all possible information and report.

From the Fire Chief, being report of fires, with risks, insurance and losses for the month of March. Total loss \$2,300.00 Filed.

From the City Solicitor, re ornamental lighting and advising that he is communicating with Victoria City to ascertain on what principal they go with regard to ornamental lighting.

Filed.

From J.B. Holdcroft, Cumberland Crescent, requesting that the garbage collection service be extended to include some 12 or more houses between Mosquito and McKay Creeks.

Referred to the Sanitary Inspector for report.

From the Burrard Dry Dock Company being list of employees, residents of this City during the month of March.

Filed for reference.

From Arthur Harvey, driver of the Garbage team, applying for an increase in wages.

Referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the Board of Works submitting tabulation of the various tenders for trucks. Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Townsley that a Day-Elder truck be purchased at the price of \$4,926.00.

An amendment was offered.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman that the cheapest truck, viz, a Gotfredson, at the price of \$4,878.76 be purchased from the North Shore Motors.

A vote was taken.

For the Amendment: Aldermen Bridgman, white, Irwin, Anderson.

Against Amendment: Aldermen Cartwright and Townsley.

The Mayor declared the Amendment carried and the motion lost.

Alderman Cartwright reported that the Special Committee consider the Ford light delivery the most suitable for the work of the Department.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that a Ford Light Delivery be purchased for the use of the Board of Works Department.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Treasurer be authorized to issue cheque for payment of the Gotfredson truck

and Ford light delivery, also necessary licenses, upon accounts being properly O.K.'d.

From the City Solicitor, advising that the application of Sing Lee for compensation for refusing to issue him a laundry license in the restricted area, was heard on the 29th March. The City's contention was upheld and Sing Lee's application was dismissed with costs.

Filed for reference.

From the City Collector being report on collections for the month of March and for the period ending March 31st, 1927.

Filed.

Under Inquiries Alderman Townsley inquired what progress is being made with reference to sewer on Keith Road between 13th and Forbes.

The Engineer replied that report would be in for next meeting.

Tenders

Applications to purchase tax sale lots were received as follows:

From L.B. Howard on behalf of Alex and Mary B. Young, Lot 19/24/273, List price \$250.00.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above application be accepted.

From Irwin & Billings Co. Ltd., on behalf of Rita Pare, Lots 23 and 24, Block 224A, D.L. 544, List price \$225.00 for two lots.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above application be accepted.

Reports and recommendations by the Finance, School, Police, Ferry, Board of Works, Waterworks, Fire and Light, Health and Parks Committees, on due accounts were submitted by the respective Chairmen and read to the meeting and the Treasurer was authorized to pay the accounts to the amounts following:

Finance		\$3,017.00
School		\$11,553.86
Police		\$1,250.28
Ferry		\$9,478.71
Board of Works	\$489.15	
	<u> 1869.01</u>	\$2,357.16
Waterworks	\$337.50	
	<u>200.37</u>	\$537.87
Fire & Light		\$1,415.00
Health	\$340.00	
	<u>132.37</u>	\$472.37

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the following report of the Finance Committee be adopted:

The Chairman reported that the Assistant License Inspector had been making progress, that collections are satisfactory to date and that on instructions of the Committee he is visiting Point Grey, South Vancouver and Burnaby with a view to checking up on trades license schedule. RECOMMEND that Mr. Thomas Hutchinson's engagement be extended one month n same terms as outlined in resolution of his first appointment.

RECOMMEND that a communication from the Rotary Institute for Diseases of the Chest being account for patients, be laid over for report from the Clerk.

RECOMMEND that the Relief accounts as reported by the relief officer be paid.

RECOMMEND that the account of Bartholomew, Montgomery & Company Ltd. Amounting to \$50.00 re services in connection with street lighting agreement, be aped.

RECOMMEND that the matter of agreement between the City and Captain Yorke re Esplanade trackage, be referred to the Engineer and Solicitor for report at next meeting.

RECOMMEND that the V.O.N. be given permission to rent their garage situate at the corner of the Fire Hall ground, providing tenant is satisfactory to the Fire Chief.

RECOMMEND the purchase from the Royal Financial Corporation of £400 City of North Vancouver 4 ½% due 1931 at 97.81 to yield 5.04%.

RECOMMEND that the matter of receipts from Football teams for use of New Mahon Park be referred to the Parks Committee for report.

The Treasurer reported that he is going on holidays and will be absent approximately 4 weeks.

RECOMMEND that during the absence of C.R. Lane, City Treasurer, that C.D. Jermyn be and is hereby appointed Acting Treasurer.

Mr. Smith interviewed the Committee with a view to holding a four days carnival about the first week in May, 50% of net profits to be for Hospital Committee use. No skin games permitted.

Recommend that the above proposal be not entertained.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the following report of the Parks Committee be adopted:

Communication was received from the Hospital Management requesting that garbage be taken away from the Hospital more often than twice weekly.

The Chairman reported that the Department is arranging for garbage collection from the Hospital three days per week.

Alderman Bridgman reported that the Hospital will have to arrange for an incinerator.

Communication was received form the Band Master, 6th Field Company, C.E. setting dates for band concerts at Victoria Park June 23rd, July 7th, July 21st and August 11th.

RECOMMEND that the arrangement of Band concerts be referred to the Chairman of Parks with power to act.

Mr. Harron interviewed the Committee stating that the Masonic Board and the Oddfellows Board with to have improvements made in their plots at the Cemetery and they wish to make arrangements with respect to same and the installation of a curb along the Memorial Drive, also levels. RECOMMEND that the parks Committee meet representatives of the Masonic and I.O.O.F. Cemetery Boards on the ground at the Cemetery and submit report and recommendation.

The Chairman reported that the Committee is not ready yet to make a recommendation with respect to the use of New Mahon Park for cricket purposes.

RECOMMEND that the above matter be laid over until next meeting.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the following report of the Ferry Committee be adopted:

Letter was received from J. Kinnard, drawing attention to the fact that the Union label does not appear on the covers of 40 for \$2.00 ferry tickets.

The Treasurer reported that Nicholson Limited is the only printer west of Montreal who has a machine for printing tickets to advantage, the operation o supplying tickets requiring a special machine.

RECOMMEND that the above matter be laid over.

RECOMMEND that a communication from W.W. Weston be filed.

A Mr. Stewart was present, requesting that the Committee take up with the British Columbia Electric Railway Company management, the question of better connection between the Ferry and the British Columbia Electric Railway Company car on the arriving of the Boat leaving North Vancouver at 7 a.m.

RECOMMEND that the above matter be referred to the Chairman and Ferry Superintendent to interview the British Columbia Electric Railway Company management.

The Superintendent reported that the Smoking Room on No. 2 is expected to be finished on Wednesday the 6th instant. He also reported that the floor has a cover of san-san which is substantial and sanitary and recommending that the down stairs cabins be treated in the same fashion when the time becomes opportune.

RECOMMEND that the Superintendent submit estimate of cost of covering the floors in the down stairs cabins with san-san.

RECOMMEND that the Superintendent call for tenders for jerseys and trousers for deckhands, to be in next meeting.

Communication was received from E.J. Gillett, tenant of Refreshment booth at Vancouver, requesting permission to rent space for a garage near the weight scales.

RECOMMEND that the above application be referred to the Ferry Committee to interview the applicant, the Council having no objection, providing it is satisfactory to the Superintendent. Tenant to erect a garage which would become City property, cost to be deducted from rental.

The Superintendent reported that during the recent overhaul of No. 2 the aft stern post was found to be badly worm eaten and it will be necessary to renew same about the end of September, recommending that suitable winter cut lumber properly seasoned be authorized be authorized ordered in order that the repairs may be suitably completed in order to secure renewal of Inspector's Certificate.

RECOMMEND that the Superintendent be authorized to arrange with the Burrard Dry Dock Company for suitable supply of winter cut lumber, properly seasoned.

RECOMMEND that a year's supply of load tickets be procured.

The Chairman submitted a report of traffic – 6 days in 1926 also 6 days in 1925 including May Day period.

The Superintendent submitted report re Engineer Mathieson No. 3 Ferry who is meantime off duty pending the decision of the Committee.

The Superintendent also read a report from Engineer McLeod in connection with above matter.

RECOMMEND that Engineer Mathieson be suspended, without pay for the month of April.

RECOMMEND that a letter be forwarded to Engineer Mathieson and Mrs. Mathieson outlining the attitude of the Council in connection with the suspension of Engineer Mathieson.

RECOMMEND that a \$5.00 per month increase be granted to the Ticket Sellers and Ticket Collectors dating from April 1st.

RECOMMEND that Eugene Pare, Foreman, be increased to \$5.60 per day.

Re deckhands and firemen.

RECOMMEND that schedules be secured for localities operating similar system.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the following report of the Board of Works be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the Engineer report on cost of a 12 foot concrete walk on the west side of Lonsdale from 3rd Street to 8th Street, said walk to be up to the property line.

Alderman Townsley voting against.

RECOMMEND that the Board of Works furnish list of concrete walks they wish undertaken during the present year.

RECOMMEND that the Engineer be authorized to improve 8th street west of Lonsdale by a few loads of gravel, to fill up the holes.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the following report of the Fire and Light Committee be adopted:

Alderman Cartwright drew attention of the Committee to a complaint received by him that there is no street light on 10th Street between Ridgeway and Sutherland.

The Chairman also stated that lights are required at 5th and Queensbury and 2nd and St. David's.

RECOMMEND that the Chairman submit report and recommendation at next meeting re above.

Alderman Bridgman requested to be relieved from acting on the Jubilee Celebration Committee.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that Alderman White be appointed to represent the Council on the Jubilee Celebration Committee instead of Alderman Bridgman.

Alderman Irwin reported that a party is prepared to build a dwelling in Block 112 opposite Queen Mary School, providing they can get permit to set back 35 feet from the property line, not including steps.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that a permit be granted party applying for a construction of a dwelling in Block 112, set back from property line 35 feet not including steps.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Harbour Commissioners and B.C. Mills Timber and Trading Company be notified that the City wishes to proceed with hard surfacing the low level road.

The Solicitor reported having interviewed the Solicitors of the Harbour Commissioners and that he expects a plan of the location of the low level road on 5th or 6th instant.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that a Committee consisting of the Mayor, Alderman Cartwright and Alderman Irwin interviewe4 the Harbour Commissioners and B.C. Mills Timber and Trading Company with respect to low level road.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that in compliance with section 10 of the Town Planning Act, the Town Planning Commission be requested to submit a Zoning map and a Town Planning Bylaw, recommending the boundaries of the Districts and appropriate regulations and restrictions to be enforced hereunder.

Alderman Cartwright, Chairman of the Board of Works, reported recommending that day labourers be paid \$4.50 per day.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above recommendation be adopted and that labourers be paid at the rate of \$4.50 per day from last pay day, above rule to hold re straw boss.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that a communication from the All Canaian Amusements Ltd., with respect to operating a merry-go-round, be referred to the Chief of Police and Parks Committee for a recommendation.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Tax Levy Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the above Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 814.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Percentage Additions Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the above Bylaw as now read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 815.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Building Bylaw Amendment Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above Bylaw as now read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 816.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Garbage Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the above Bylaw as now read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 817.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Mayor and Aldermen's Indemnity Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 818.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Lonsdale Avenue (East-First to Second) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 819.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Lonsdale Avenue (West-First to Third) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 820.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Lonsdale Avenue (West-Sixteenth to Twenty-first) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 821.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Lonsdale Avenue (West-Twenty-first to City Limits) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 822

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Esplanade (South-Lonsdale to West side of Lot 7, Block 177, D.L. 271) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 823.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Esplanade (North-Roger's to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 824

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver First Street (South-Roger's to Lonsdale) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 825

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver First Street (South-Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 826.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley Second Street (South-Chesterfield to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 827.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Second Street (North-Chesterfield to Lonsdale) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 828.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Third Street (South-Chesterfield to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 829.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Third Street (North-Chesterfield to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 830.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Eight Street (North-Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 831.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twelfth Street (South-Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above noted Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 832.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Fifteenth Street (North-West line

of Lot 2, Block 31, D.L. 549 to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered. Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 833.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver First Street (North-Lonsdale to West line of Lot A, Block 156, D.L. 274) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 834.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver First Street (North-Roger's to West side of Lot A, Block 156, D.L. 274) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1927" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the above Bylaw as now reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 835.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver General Hospital Confirmation of Agreement Bylaw 1927" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver General Hospital Confirmation of Agreement Bylaw 1927" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver General Hospital Confirmation of Agreement Bylaw 1927" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver General Hospital Confirmation of Agreement Bylaw 1927" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Local Improvement Debenture Consolidation Bylaw 1927" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Local Improvement Debenture Consolidation Bylaw 1927" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Local Improvement Debenture Consolidation Bylaw 1927" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Local Improvement Debenture Consolidation Bylaw 1927" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Irwin, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Interim Zoning Bylaw 1927" and that the said Bylaw receive two readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such two readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Interim Zoning Bylaw 1927" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Townsley and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Interim Zoning Bylaw 1927" be referred to Committee of the Whole.

Mayor Morden reported that a Mr. Perry, an employee of the Burrard Inlet Tunnel and Bridge Company, wishes to connect on to the City's telephone line between the end of the car line and the Intake.

The above matter was referred to the Engineer for a report.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that this Council do now proceed to resolve itself into Committee of the Whole. Alderman Townsley was appointed Chairman.

IN COMMITTEE

IN COUNCIL

Moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the above report of the Committee of the Whole be adopted.

At 12:05 a.m. it was moved by Alderman Townsley, seconded by Alderman Irwin and resolved that this meeting adjourn.

Signed: G.H. Morden, Mayor